
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, March 24, 2015                                                                                                     City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• WRIA 9:  Continuing Watershed-Based Restoration and Salmon Recovery with Covington     
(Doug Osterman, Watershed coordinator) 

• International Student Exchange Day (Kentlake & Kentwood High Schools) 
 

RECEPTION TO WELCOME EXCHANGE STUDENTS AND TEACHERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  March 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  February 12 and March 12 meetings 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  March 18 meeting 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  March 12 meeting 
• Planning Chair Bill Judd:  March 5 meeting; March 19 meeting canceled 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  February 26 meeting 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Contract with MacLeod Reckord for Park Design Services (Feser) 
2. Consider Approval of PROS Plan Consultant (Feser) 
3. Approve Contract for Design of Town Center, City Hall & Public Plaza (Hart) 
4. Clarify Use of City Seal and Logo (Slate) 
5. Presentation of 2014 Year End Financials (Hendrickson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  March 24, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MARCH 10, 2015 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the March 10, 2015, City Council Special & 
Regular Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 80



Unapproved Draft – March 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 24, 2015 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Special & Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, March 10, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
INTERVIEWS– 6:40-7:00 P.M.: 
The Council conducted an interview for one position open on the Arts Commission and one 
youth position open on the Human Services Commission.  The applicant interviewed was Nia 
Dhillon. 
  
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, March 
10, 2015, at 7:05 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Scott 
Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; 
and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott 
seconded to amend the Agenda to add New Business Item No. 3 – Appointment to the 
Human Services Commission.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn provided his annual update on what currently is 
happening at the county level and how it interfaces with the city. 
 

• Arts Commissioners Lesli Cohan and Leslie Spero accepted the March 2015 Youth Art Month 
Proclamation.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

2 of 80



Unapproved Draft – March 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 24, 2015 
 
 

2 
 

Patricia Lynch, 17015 SE Wax Road, Covington, reminded Council she had been at the 
previous council meeting to provide comments on the additional traffic on Wax Road due to the 
sewer project.  Ms. Lynch advised that police officers had been out to monitor how the schools 
were doing, and noted that the school does have crossing guards.  Ms. Lynch, however, 
suggested that the speed limit be lowered for that stretch as traffic appears to be going over 35 
mph during the day and also suggested that police officers monitor the area during non crossing 
guard hours. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  February 24, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #32188-32242, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds 

Transfers, in the Amount of $338,075.94, Dated February 20, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1003454296-1003454308 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $168,284.01, Dated February 27, 2015. 
 

C-3. Approve Parametrix Contract for Biologist Services. 
 

C-4. Extend Interlocal Agreement with Regional Animal Services of King County. 
 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Comments and Consider Ordinance Extending Interim Zoning Regulations 
Regarding Recreational Marijuana. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions, and Mr. Hart and City Attorney Sara Springer provided 
responses. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the public 
hearing. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 03-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 06-14 
TO EXTEND THE INTERIM ZONING REGULATIONS FOR 
RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA PRODUCTION, PROCESSING, AND 

3 of 80



Unapproved Draft – March 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 24, 2015 
 
 

3 
 

RETAIL USES FOR AN ADDITIONAL SIX MONTHS; PROVIDING 
FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE EXTENSION; ADOPTING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 03-15 extending the current interim zoning regulations for 
recreational marijuana production, processing, and retail uses for an additional six 
months.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Approve City Manager Merit Goals for 2015.   
 
City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers each selected three top choices from the list provided in the agenda packet and 
discussed. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the 2015 Merit Goals for the City Manager as follows: 
 
 1) Plan for Hawk Property development.  Research and possibly create Community 

Facility District.  Work with developer on construction of the Covington Connector 
Street if funded. 

 
 2) Develop Town Center renderings for marketing material, establish plan to 

purchase school property, and plan open house events for community and schools. 
 
 3) Create a Parks and Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee (PrePAC). 
 
Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Consider an Appointment to the Human Services Commission. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
appoint Nia Dhillon to fill Youth Position No. 5 on the Human Services Commission with a 
term expiring March 31, 2016.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

4 of 80



Unapproved Draft – March 10, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 24, 2015 
 
 

4 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To discuss potential litigation pursuant to (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 8:20 to 8:35 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 80



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 24, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #32243-32295, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds 
Transfers, in the Amount of $141,489.51, Dated March 6, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003500497-1003500511 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$166,794.65, Dated March 13, 2015. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #32243-32295, including ACH 
Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers, in the Amount of $141,489.51, 
Dated March 6, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003500497-
1003500511 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$166,794.65, Dated March 13, 2015. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 

6 of 80



7 of 80



8 of 80



9 of 80



10 of 80



11 of 80



12 of 80



13 of 80



14 of 80



15 of 80



16 of 80



17 of 80



18 of 80



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 24, 2015 

 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR 

PARK DESIGN FOR COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK PHASE 2.    
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
1. Professional Services Agreement  
2. Scope of Work and Fees 
 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner  
 
EXPLANATION: 
Covington Community Park (CCP) Phase I construction was completed June 2013.  Last year, 
both the CCP Phases 2 and 3 design was advanced to the 60% level and the Phase 2 cost estimate 
were completed in May 2014. The City Council approved both the design and cost estimate in 
June 2014. This work was completed by MacLeod Reckord Landscape Architects. Before 
construction of Phase 2, two more elements of the design process need to be completed; Corps of 
Engineers wetland permit and 100% design construction drawings.  
 
This contract with MacLeod Reckord will provide the services necessary to submit the wetland 
permit application to the Corps of Engineers. This permit could take up to 18 months to complete 
and is required before construction can begin. By completing this application now it will help the 
Phase 2 project to achieve the timeline goal of a 2016 construction start. The wetland permit will 
also provide direction in regards to the wetland mitigation that will be required by Phase 2 
improvements.    
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
1. Amend the scope of this phase of design. 
2. Do not approve any scope of work. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The cost of the design contract is $57,200 including contingency. Last year, the City Council 
approved the expenditure of $264,000 from the $2.1m legislative appropriation/CTED grant 
awarded in 2013 for Phase 2. Currently, there is an unspent balance of $46,024 from that 
allocation. Staff is recommending using this balance, plus an additional $11,176 of the CTED 
grant fund to pay for this required design work. This would increase the City’s liability to 
$275,176 if we are unable to utilize the CTED grant by its 2017 deadline. The funding source is 
a reimbursement grant, so money may be transferred from other funds to cover costs until 
reimbursements are received.  
 

 
 

19 of 80



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance            Resolution      X   Motion            Other 
 

Council member ___________ moves, Council member ____________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract between 
the City of Covington and MacLeod Reckord, in substantial from as 
that attached hereto, to complete additional design for the City’s 
Covington Community Park.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  Parks & Recreation Director, City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney 

 

20 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 1 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT  

ARCHITECTURE/ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is entered into this 20th day of February, 2015, by and between 
the City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and MacLeod Reckord, an 
architectural/engineering services consultant (“Consultant”).  
 

RECITALS 
 
 A. The City seeks the services of an architectural/engineering consultant to perform wetland permit 
approval for Covington Community Park services on behalf of the citizens of Covington; and 
 
 B. The Consultant has the qualifications and experience necessary to provide said services; and 
 
 C. The City has selected the Consultant to perform said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions under which the Consultant 
will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth herein, the City 
and the Consultant do hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby engage the Consultant and the  
Consultant does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the City the services more particularly described herein.   
 
2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the Consultant shall perform the  
services described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“Services”), in a 
manner consistent with the accepted practices for similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the 
time period prescribed by the City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or his or her designee.  In 
performing the Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards, and policies, as now existing or 
hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance.  
 
3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing upon  
execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but in any event no later than December 31, 2016 
(“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this Agreement. Time is of the essence in each and every 
term of this Agreement.  
 
4. Compensation and Method of Payment.   

 
4.1. Compensation.  In consideration of the Consultant performing the Services, the City agrees to  

pay the Consultant as follows [applicable method of payment is indicated with a checkmark—only one method of 
payment shall be selected]: 
 

4.1.1. __ __ An amount not to exceed $__________ calculated on the basis of the hourly rates  
set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached and incorporated herein by this reference; OR 

4.1.2. __X__ An amount not to exceed $XXXXXXX; OR 
4.1.3. ____ Other [describe]: _____________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________. 
 

4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by the City for the Services will only be made after the Services  
have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a form acceptable to the City, and the same 
is approved by the appropriate City representative.  Payment shall be made no later than ten (10) days after city 
council approval of the invoiced amount.   
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

21 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 2 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

4.3. First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the Consultant shall return to the 
City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification,” also known as IRS form W-9. 
 

4.4. Consultant Responsible for Taxes.  The Consultant shall be solely responsible for the payment 
of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
5. Books and Records.  The Consultant agrees to maintain books, records, and documents that sufficiently 
and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the performance of the Services and maintain such 
accounting procedures and practices as may be deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all 
funds paid pursuant to this Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection, review 
or audit by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by 
law to monitor this Agreement. 
 
6. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary to 
provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental 
entities, including but not limited to being registered to do business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of 
Covington business license.   The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy 
and accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other 
services prepared or performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall perform its work in accordance 
with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of professional care, skill, diligence, and 
competence as are normally exercised by other members and/or firms of the profession in good standing working 
under the same or similar conditions and circumstances and in similar communities as the services provided by the 
Consultant under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance, 
and actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant.  The 
City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any costs or damages incurred by the City, 
or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of this 
Agreement or failure to meet the professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, 
drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and other products of the professional services rendered hereunder shall 
not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy thereof.  Neither the 
City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services shall be construed to operate as a waiver of 
any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   
 
7. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original records, reports, designs, files, documents, 
drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of form or format, and all other materials prepared or 
produced by the Consultant in connection with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the project for 
which they were created is executed or not. At the termination or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such 
records or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the City.  No confidential 
information obtained or created by the Consultant shall be disclosed to any person or party other than the City 
without the City’s prior written consent. 
 
8. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the Consultant that the 
Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that the City shall be neither liable nor obligated to pay the 
Consultant sick leave, vacation pay, or any other benefit of employment.  The Consultant shall pay all income and 
other taxes due.  Industrial or any other insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether 
such may provide a secondary or incidental benefit to the Consultant, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement 
to an employment contract.  The Consultant shall be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, 
employees, sub-consultants, or representatives during the performance of this Agreement.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of employer and employee or principal and agent between the 
parties hereto.  The Consultant shall have the sole judgment of the means, mode, or manner of the actual 
performance of this Agreement.  The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for 
carrying out and accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
9. Indemnification.  The consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, including attorney 
fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. Should a court of competent 
jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages 
arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence 

22 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 3 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant’s liability hereunder, 
including the duty and cost to defend, shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence. It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant’s waiver of 
immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has 
been mutually negotiated by the parties. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement. 
  
10. Insurance.  The Consultant shall at a minimum procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement 
the following insurance against claims which may arise from or in connection with the performance of work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees and in such forms and with such carriers who 
have a rating satisfactory to the City [required insurance coverage under this Agreement is indicated with a 
checkmark]: 
 

10.1. _X_ Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance covering any negligent professional  
acts, errors or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined single limits of liability 
not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit for damages sustained by reason of or in 
the course of operation under this Agreement. 
 

10.2. _X__ Employer Liability. Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts  
sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington.  
 

10.3. _X__ Commercial General Liability. Commercial general liability insurance covering liability  
arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and advertising injury and written on 
ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, 
$2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, including personal injury or death, products liability, and property 
damage.  
 

10.4. _X__ Automobile Liability. Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned,  
hired, and leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident 
for bodily injury, including personal injury or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed 
to provide contractual liability coverage.   
      

10.5. Additional Requirements. 
 

10.5.1. The City shall be named as additional insured on all above required insurance policies,  
with the exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant participates in a 
state-run workers’ comp program.   
 

10.5.2. Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not 
less than A:VII.  
 

10.5.3. All required insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they  
may not be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the City.  If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," the Consultant shall be required 
to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) years from the date of this Agreement is actually 
terminated or upon project completion and acceptance by the City.   
 

10.5.4. The Consultant shall provide original certificates of insurance and a copy of the  
amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, evidencing such above required 
coverage and, at the City's request, furnish the City with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of 
payment of premiums or fees of such policies.   
 

10.6. The Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required above shall not be construed to limit the  
liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity.  
 

10.7. The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies as required above shall be grounds for 

23 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 4 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 
11. Termination.   

 
11.1. This Agreement may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by the City.   

 
11.2. Upon termination, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports, 

or other materials prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five 
(5) business days of the date of termination. Consultant shall be entitled to payment for all Services satisfactorily 
performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of termination. 
 

11.3. This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies it may otherwise have  
for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement.  The remedies provided in this 
paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedy the City may have at law or in equity. 
 
12. Discrimination.  In all Consultant services, programs, or activities, and all Consultant hiring and  
employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, there shall be no discrimination by the Consultant 
or by the Consultant's employees, agents, subcontractors, or representatives against any person because of sex, age 
(except minimum age and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status, or the presence of 
any disability, including sensory, mental, or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide occupational 
qualification in relationship to hiring and employment.  This requirement shall apply, but not be limited to the 
following:  employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and 
selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The Consultant shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 
RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or any other applicable federal, state, or local law or regulation regarding non-
discrimination. Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by the 
City and, in the case of the Consultant's breach, may result in ineligibility for further City agreements.   
 
13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement  
or subcontract any portion of the Services contemplated hereunder without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
14. Conflict of Interest.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict of interest in performing  
any of the Services described herein.  It is recognized that the Consultant may or will be performing services during 
the Term for other parties; provided, however, that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or 
interfere with the Consultant’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform 
services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the Consultant shall immediately disclose such potential 
conflict to the City.  The Consultant agrees to resolve any actual conflicts of interest in favor of the City. 
 
15. Confidentiality.  All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant and designated by the City  
as confidential in the performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential.  Breach of confidentiality by 
the Consultant shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement. 

  
16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire  
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, 
conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous 
communications, negotiations, representations, or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto 
concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
17. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing signed by all parties  
hereto.   
 
18. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default immediately upon occurrence  
shall not waive such breach or default. Failure of the City to declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of 
the City's right to declare another breach or default. 
 
19. Successors.  Subject to any limiting provisions of this Agreement, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit  
of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 

24 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 5 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

successors, and assigns. 
 
20. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. The invalidity  
or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and the 
Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this 
Agreement.  
 
21. Notices.  All notices, payments, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be  
deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first class or certified mail, with postage 
prepaid to the address included in the signature block below, or to such other person or place as one party shall 
furnish to the other in writing. Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, 
upon the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
22. Governing Law / Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of  
Washington. The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be King County, Washington. 
 
23. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the substantially defaulting party  
agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, 
including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or 
the determination of the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, arbitration, 
administrative, bankruptcy, and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
24. Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of reference and shall be  
given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 
25. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City and the Consultant contained  
hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
26. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this Agreement is the City’s legal  
representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this 
transaction.  The Consultant further acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel 
and has had an opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has consulted 
with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do so. There shall be no 
presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party hereto. 
 
27. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and the Consultant represents  
and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the 
Consultant or the City. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON      CONSULTANT  
 
 
________________________________    ___________________________________ 
By: Regan Bolli      By:________________________________ 
Its: City Manager      Its: ________________________________ 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100     Address: ____________________________ 
Covington, WA  98042      ____________________________________ 
        
 
Attest:        Approved as to form: 
      
 
____________________________________   _________________________________  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk      Sara Springer, City Attorney 

25 of 80



Covington Community Park Phase 2 Page 1 of 1

MacLeod Reckord 
Landscape Architecture    Planning    Urban Design 
Daily Journal of Commerce Building 
83 Columbia Street  Suite 306   
Seattle, Washington 98104  
P 206-323-7919  
F 206-323-9242 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
December 3, 2014 

 
Covington Community Park 

Phase 2 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Scope 
The Scope of Work is more fully described in the attached Exhibit A Scope of Work from 
Environmental Services (ESA).  MacLeod Reckord (MR) is providing supporting design and 
documentation for the work described by ESA.  The work described fall into three Tasks: 
 
Task 1 – Mitigation Report (for Phase 2, based on the 60% plan set) 
ESA is providing the draft and final Mitigation Reports for the Phase 2 project.  MacLeod Reckord is 
providing the draft (60%) and final (90%) plan sets showing grading, planting, details, and schedule to 
support the Mitigation Report.  The Report is required for agency review and approval.  The Plans are 
a required component of the Report, but also provide the necessary sheets that will be included in the 
larger project bid document set.  In addition, MR will provide a cost estimate and 90% level 
specifications for the mitigation package.  Once the agency review is complete, and final comments 
are received, the 90% plans, specs, and cost estimate will be advanced to a 100% bid package.  This 
last effort (taking 90% to 100%) is not included in this scope or fee, as it is assumed by then it will be 
part of a larger project bid package. 
 
Task 2 – Environmental Permitting and Documentation (specifically the JARPA, or Joint Aquatic 
Resources Permit Application) 
ESA is authoring the JARPA and MR is providing the graphic exhibits that are a required part of the 
JARPA.  It is assumed these exhibits will be derivatives of the graphics being generated for the 
Mitigation Report.  The time allotted in the respective fee proposals for developing the JARPA and 
supporting graphics is determined to be a maximum.  Additional requests from the agency for exhibits 
may require additional fee. 
 
Task 3 – Project Meetings and Agency Coordination 
ESA and MR have identified, under a separate task, the time allotted for agency and team meetings. 
 
GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS 

1. Additional survey may be required to provide adequate base information for the mitigation 
plans.  Survey is not included in this scope or fee. 

2. Grading plans will be prepared, stamped, and signed by the landscape architect. 
3. Wetland verification or additional delineation or mapping not anticipated and is not included in 

the scope or fee. 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2

26 of 80



Exhibit A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
ESA 

 
Covington Community Park: Phase 2 – 60% Design 

December 2014 
 
The following is a Scope of Work to conduct environmental permitting and documentation in 
support of Phase 2 of the Covington Community Park in the City of Covington.  The City has 
directed MacLeod Reckord and its sub-consultants to develop and acquire environmental permits 
for 60% design of Phase 2 of the Park Master Plan. Only Phase 2 will be designed, mitigation 
requirements for Phases 3 are not included in this task. This scope covers tasks anticipated to 
occur from December 2014 to December 31, 2015.  Work occurring beyond this time frame may 
require additional funding and contract revision. 
 
ESA previously conducted wetland delineations on the park property and produced a wetland 
report describing the wetlands and appropriate regulatory issues. The wetland delineations were 
reviewed and approved by the Corps of Engineers in 2010. Wetland mitigation was designed, 
permitted, and constructed for Phase 1 of the park Master Plan. Conceptual on-site mitigation 
plans for the remainder of the park Master Plan (now Phases 2 and 3) were discussed in the 
wetland mitigation report: Covington Community Park Critical Areas Report and Final 
Mitigation Plan (ESA 2011).  
 
  
TASK 1: Mitigation Report for 60% Design of Phase 2   
 
Subtask 1.1 – Mitigation Strategy Memo (Task Completed) 
ESA will prepare a brief memorandum that outlines the mitigation strategy for the Phase 2 
project.  This mitigation strategy will demonstrate the options for mitigation and provide a “ball 
park” estimate for potential mitigation costs per each option.  Based upon recent guidance and 
communication with the Corps of Engineers, the preference for mitigation is to be provided 
within formally established mitigation banks or in-lieu fee (ILF) programs.  ESA will investigate 
the pros and cons (including costs) of use of established banks in King County, and of on-site 
mitigation measures. 
 
Subtask 1.2 - Draft and Final Phase 2 Mitigation Report 
ESA will prepare draft and final mitigation report based on the level of environmental impacts 
associated with the wetland fill required for construction of Phase 2.  The draft mitigation plan 
report will refine the conceptual mitigation proposed in the 2011 mitigation report based on 60% 
Phase 2 park design. Mitigation design drawings, plans and details will be prepared by MacLeod 
Reckord and will include on-site wetland creation and enhancement as desired by City of 
Covington for all wetlands to be impacted in Phase 2.  Based upon the pre-application meeting 
held in October 2014 with the Corps of Engineers and Ecology, this scope assumes all mitigation 
will occur onsite to satisfy state and federal permitting authorities. 
 

27 of 80



Exhibit A  Page 2 of 4 
ESA SOW – December 2014 
Covington Community Park – Phase 2 
 
The mitigation plan report shall include identification of site-specific performance criteria and 
standards for success and a proposed monitoring and maintenance plan per CMC 18.65.340.  The 
draft plan will be submitted to the Corps of Engineers and Department of Ecology pursuant to 
the application for the Section 404 Nationwide Permit and the Ecology 401 water quality 
certification, and to the City of Covington for development and land use permit applications.   
 
The final mitigation report will be completed based on comment provided by MacLeod Reckord 
and City staff. The mitigation plan will be the document of record for the environmental permits 
for this project.   
 
Task 1 Deliverables 
 Wetland Mitigation Strategy Memo for Phase 2 (Task Completed) 
 Wetland Mitigation Report for Phase 2 – Draft (PDF format) 
 Wetland Mitigation Report for Phase 2 – Final (4 bound copies) 
 
 
ASSUMPTIONS 

1. Phase 2 park design is anticipated to fill less than 0.5 acres of wetland and will not 
include impacts to Little Soos Creek, 

2. ESA will provide environmental review of the proposed mitigation design drawings and 
provide written comments to MacLeod Reckord regarding plant species, grading, 
hydrological considerations, and consistency with local, state and federal permit 
requirements. 

3. ESA anticipates one round of review for the Draft Report. All draft materials will be 
submitted for review electronically in either their native file format or as PDF files.  

4. It is our understanding that the City prefers use of on-site wetland mitigation rather than 
use of the King County ILF program which has recently been approved as a formal 
wetland mitigation bank. Use of the ILF program or other off-site mitigation is not 
included in this scope or work. Although, mitigation through ILF or Mitigation Banks 
is the Corps first preference for mitigation for wetland impacts that are unavoidable, 
we understand from the pre-application meeting that on-site mitigation will be 
considered for this project. 

5. On-site wetland mitigation will be acceptable to the Corps and Ecology. 
6. Mitigation design, including grading, planting plans and specifications will be provided 

by MacLeod Reckord. 
 
 
TASK 2: Phase 2 Environmental Permitting and Documentation 
 
The MacLeod Reckord team will prepare 60% design drawings and Plans, Specifications, and 
Estimates (PSE) for Phase 2 of the planned Covington Community Park.  Phase 2 elements 
include an entry drive and parking lot, frontage improvements, shelter/stage structure and entry 
pavilion, pedestrian pathways connecting to Phase 1 improvements, plant beds and lawn areas as 
identified in the Master Plan adopted February 10, 2009 and contained within the park-wide 60% 

28 of 80



Exhibit A  Page 3 of 4 
ESA SOW – December 2014 
Covington Community Park – Phase 2 
 
plans submitted in May 2014.  The project is expected to impact less than 0.5-acre of wetland 
and will not affect Little Soos Creek.  Under Task 2, ESA will prepare environmental permits in 
support of state and federal permitting as described below. 
 
Unless otherwise stated, it is assumed that all other necessary building, construction, and other 
environmental permit applications would be prepared by others. 
 
Joint Aquatic Resources Permit Application (JARPA) 
Based on the amount of anticipated wetland impact (less than 0.5-acre), a Section 404 
Nationwide Permit from the Corps of Engineers is anticipated for the project.  It is anticipated 
that the project will be authorized under Nationwide Permit 42 – Recreational Facilities.    
The JARPA form is a joint application form that will be prepared in support of a Corps of 
Engineers Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit, Ecology 401 Water Quality Certification and 
Coastal Zone Consistency Determination, and Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife 
(WDFW) Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA). ESA will coordinate with MacLeod Reckord 
during JARPA figure preparations. ESA will assemble JARPA materials for submittal by the 
City to the Corps of Engineers, and Ecology.   
 
Task 2 Deliverables 
 JARPA – Draft document for City review  
 JARPA – Final permit package 
 
ASSUMPTIONS 
 
 

 It is assumed that MacLeod Reckord will prepare Corps of Engineers JARPA figures for 
the Phase 2 project based on 60% design information. 

 It is anticipated that from 4 to 6 figures will be necessary for the JARPA submittal. 
 JARPA materials shall also require 60% design drawings and narrative descriptions of 

the proposed project work provided by MacLeod Reckord and others.   
 On-site wetland mitigation will be approved by the Corps and Ecology as an acceptable 

alternative to use of the King County ILF program. 
 Wetland impacts will be permitted by the Corps under Nationwide Permit 42, and an 

Individual Permit will not be necessary. 
 
TASK 3: Project Meetings and Agency Coordination 
 
ESA staff shall prepare for and attend up to6 meetings for the project for a period of 12 months 
from the time a notice to proceed is issued for the project.  Project team coordination and 
communication during design and permitting is also included in this task.  Coordination and 
communication with the Corps and Ecology during permit review is also anticipated.  
 
ESA staff will be available for up to 24 hours of coordination to attend City Council meetings, 
public meetings, respond to public comment on City-issued permit decisions, and attend public 
hearings, if required. 

29 of 80



Exhibit A  Page 4 of 4 
ESA SOW – December 2014 
Covington Community Park – Phase 2 
 
 
 
GENERAL SCOPE ASSUMPTIONS 

1. The Wetland Report, Biological Assessment, and Cultural Resources report provided 
for Phase 1 of the project will be sufficient for Phase 2 and will not need revision or 
updating. 

2. MacLeod Reckord will provide all applicable engineering descriptions, specifications 
and drawings and other pertinent design information during the course of the project.  
This includes design drawings for JARPA figures and related materials. 

3. MacLeod Reckord will forward any agency comments to ESA in a timely manner. 
4. All draft materials will be submitted for review electronically in either their native 

file format or as PDF files.  
5. ESA shall finalize and submit all permit applications and required supporting 

materials to MacLeod Reckord and the City, which will submit deliverables to the 
regulatory agencies. 

6. ESA shall submit the number of copies of applications and supporting documentation 
identified on the application forms, plus two additional copies for the project files.  
The City shall be responsible for additional copies, if needed.  The City shall be 
responsible for distributing permit materials and the publication of any required 
notifications. 

7.  The City will sign and be responsible for delivering all permit applications. 
8. As determined by the City, wetland mitigation will be constructed onsite and within 

identified park boundaries.  
9. No additional environmental services such as SEPA or NEPA related tasks or local 

permitting are included in this scope of work.  
10. Documentation or support for a Corps of Engineers Individual Permit is not included 

in this scope or work. 
11. Additional permits, special studies, or technical evaluations may be required to 

construct this project. ESA shall not be responsible for permits, technical studies or 
applications not specifically identified as deliverables in this scope of work. 

 
 

30 of 80



MacLeod Reckord FEE DERIVATION
Landscape Architects Project: Covington Park 180th/240th - Ph 2

Date:    December 3, 2014

HOURS RATE/FEE
TASK PRINC PM LA ACAD ADMIN PRINC PM LA DRAFT WP SUBTOTAL

$160 $140 $130 $98 $82

Task 1 - Mitigation Report
1.1  (previously completed)
1.2  Draft and Final Phase 2 Mitigation Report

(60% plans)
Draft mitigation layout/grading plans 4           8           4           -             560         1,040      392         -             
Draft mitigation planting plans 2           6           1           1           -             280         780         98           82          
Draft mitigation details 2           4           4           -             280         520         392         -             
Draft plant schedule and quantity takeoffs 8           2           -             -             1,040      196         -             
Draft cost estimate for mitigation plan 1           4           1           -             140         520         -             82          
Review with ESA; City (hours in Task 3)
Revise plans, details, schedule, estimate, 
update quantities for submittal with draft 
report.  Assumes 1 revision. 4           8           8           1           -             560         1,040      784         82          8,868         

(90% plans)
Final mitigation layout/grading 2           12         6           -             280         1,560      588         -             
Final mitigation planting plans 2           6           1           1           -             280         780         98           82          
Final mitigation details 2           4           4           -             280         520         392         -             
Final plant schedule and quantity takeoffs 8           2           -             -             1,040      196         -             
Final cost estimate for mitigation plan 1           2           -             140         260         -             -             
90% specifications for mitigation site 
preparation, and mitigation planting.  Note 
grading specifications will be incorporated 
into larger plan set under a separate 
contract amendment. 8           4           4           -             1,120      520         -             328        
Review with ESA; City (hours in Task 3)
Revise plans, details, schedule, specs, 
estimate, update quantities for submittal with
final report.  Assumes 1 revision. 4           8           8           1           -             560         1,040      784         82          10,930       

Task 2 - Phase 2 Env. Permitting and Documentation
Draft JARPA Exhibits

Consultation with ESA on 4-6 Exhibits 
(hours in Task 3)

Page 1 of 2

31 of 80



MacLeod Reckord FEE DERIVATION
Landscape Architects Project: Covington Park 180th/240th - Ph 2

Date:    December 3, 2014

HOURS RATE/FEE
TASK PRINC PM LA ACAD ADMIN PRINC PM LA DRAFT WP SUBTOTAL

$160 $140 $130 $98 $82

Develop draft Exhibits 2           6           6           2           -             280         780         588         164        
Review with ESA and revise Exhibits.  
Assumes 1 revision. (mtg hours in Task 3) 1           4           1           2           -             140         520         98           164        
Review with City and revise Exhibits.  
Assumes 1 revision. (mtg hours in Task 3) 2           1           -             -             260         -             82          3,076         

Final JARPA Exhibits
Review with ESA and revise Exhibits.  
Assumes 1 revision. (mtg hours in Task 3) 1           4           1           2           -             140         520         98           164        922            

Task 3 - Project Meetings/Agency Coordination
Project team meetings; City team meetings; 
Agency coordination meetings 16         4           1           1           -             2,240      520         98           82          2,940         

Subtotal MR 26,736       

Subtotal ESA 25,295       

Reimbursables (mileage) 150            

TOTAL PROJECT FEE PROPOSAL: 52,181$    

Page 2 of 2

32 of 80



Exhibit B

Covington 180th/240th Park_Phase 2 60% Mitigation Design
MacLeod Reckord

ESA 
Based on Scope of Work Dated:  November 2014

Labor Category Director I
Managing 

Associate II
Technical 
Assoc. I

Senior 
Associate II Associate II

Senior 
Admin / 

Graphics
Admin / 

Graphics Clerical Total
Rate 170.00$          145.00$      140.00$     125.00$     90.00$           95.00$       80.00$       65.00$       

Task 1
Task 1 Phase 2 Mitigation Design Report

Compensatory Mitigation Plan - Draft and Final 2 16 14 8 30 6 8 2 86.00                      
Subtotal hours 2 16 14 8 30 6 8 2 86.00                      
Subtotal labor 340.00$          2,320.00$   1,960.00$  1,000.00$  2,700.00$      570.00$     640.00$     130.00$     9,660.00$               
Reimbersables 200.00$                  
Subtotal Task 1 9,860.00$               

Task 2
Task 2 Phase 2 Environmental Permitting and Documentation

60% JARPA - Draft and Final 1 8 8 20 4 2 43.00                      
Narratives of Project Work - Draft and Final 1 4 8 13.00                      
Subtotal hours 2 8 0 12 28 0 4 2 56.00                      
Subtotal labor 340.00$          1,160.00$   -$           1,500.00$  2,520.00$      -$           320.00$     130.00$     5,970.00$               
Reimbersables 200.00$                  
Subtotal Task 2 6,170.00$               

Task 3
Task 3 Project Meetings and Agency Coordination

Coordination Meetings (6) 24 8 12 6 1 51.00                      
City of Covington (pre application) (completed) -                          
City Council and Coordination and Hearings 16 16.00                      
Subtotal hours 0 40 8 12 0 0 6 1 67.00                      
Subtotal labor -$               5,800.00$   1,120.00$  1,500.00$  -$               -$           480.00$     65.00$       8,965.00$               
Reimbersables 300.00$                  
Subtotal Task 3 9,265.00$               

Total Estimate 25,295.00$           

Page 1 of 1

33 of 80



Agenda Item 2 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: March 24, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR THE 

PARKS, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE PLAN UPDATE 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Professional Services Agreement  
2. Scope of Work 
3. Project Fees 

 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of the Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Plan is to involve the public 
through meaningful outreach to learn the community’s highest priorities for parks and recreation 
facilities and program needs and develop a plan of action to meet those needs for a six to ten year 
time frame. The City’s first PROS Plan was adopted in 2010, but is now due for an update.  
 
In addition to guiding the City’s planning efforts, a current PROS Plan, updated every six years, 
is also necessary to receive significant grants from the state Recreation and Conservation Office 
(RCO).  This updated plan must be completed and accepted by the RCO before March 1, 2016 
for the City to be eligible for these grants.  
 
Five consultants submitted proposals.  There was strong competition, with proposals coming 
from local and national firms in the Seattle area, Portland and as far away as Colorado.  The 
proposals were evaluated and ranked by Scott Thomas, Laura Morrissey (Parks Commission 
Chair), Angie Feser, Pat Patterson and Rachel Bahl.  Three firms advanced to interviews, which 
were conducted by Scott, Angie, Pat, Rachel and David Aldous (Parks Commissioner).  The 
team led by Conservation Technix was selected based on the strength of their experience, their 
public participation plan, creative use of technology for valuable survey results and the expertise 
and composition of the team.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Change the scope of work 
2. Do not approve any scope of work 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The cost of the project is $80,000 including contingency.  Partial funding of $40,000 was 
provided in the 2015 parks operating budget through a decision card. The remaining $40,000 is 
funding allocated for the Cedar Creek Park housing demolition. Currently, the City is in 
negotiations with King County for the transfer of the park property. When that occurs, the 

34 of 80



demolition allocation will no longer be needed for Cedar Creek Park and the money will be used 
for the PROS Plan Update project.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:          Ordinance          Resolution     X    Motion          Other 
 

Council member __________ moves, Council member __________ seconds, to 
authorize the City manager to execute a contract with Conservation Technix, in 
substantial form as that attached hereto, to complete the Parks, Recreation and 
Open Space Plan update. 

  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney, Parks & Recreation Director 

35 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 1 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT  

ARCHITECTURE/ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is entered into this 24th day of March, 2015, by and between the 
City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and Conservation Technix, an 
architectural/engineering services consultant (“Consultant”).  
 

RECITALS 
 
 A. The City seeks the services of an architectural/engineering consultant to perform an update of the 
Parks, Recreation and Open Space Plan on behalf of the citizens of Covington; and 
 
 B. The Consultant has the qualifications and experience necessary to provide said services; and 
 
 C. The City has selected the Consultant to perform said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions under which the Consultant 
will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth herein, the City 
and the Consultant do hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby engage the Consultant and the  
Consultant does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the City the services more particularly described herein.   
 
2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the Consultant shall perform the  
services described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“Services”), in a 
manner consistent with the accepted practices for similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the 
time period prescribed by the City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or his or her designee.  In 
performing the Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards, and policies, as now existing or 
hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance.  
 
3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing upon  
execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but in any event no later than December 31, 2016 
(“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this Agreement. Time is of the essence in each and every 
term of this Agreement.  
 
4. Compensation and Method of Payment.   

 
4.1. Compensation.  In consideration of the Consultant performing the Services, the City agrees to  

pay the Consultant as follows: 
 

4.1.1. __ __ An amount not to exceed $__________ calculated on the basis of the hourly rates  
set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached and incorporated herein by this reference; OR 

4.1.2. __X__ An amount not to exceed $80,000; OR 
4.1.3. ____ Other [describe]: _____________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________. 
 

4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by the City for the Services will only be made after the Services  
have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a form acceptable to the City, and the same 
is approved by the appropriate City representative.  Payment shall be made no later than ten (10) days after city 
council approval of the invoiced amount.   
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

36 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 2 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

4.3. First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the Consultant shall return to the 
City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification,” also known as IRS form W-9. 
 

4.4. Consultant Responsible for Taxes.  The Consultant shall be solely responsible for the payment 
of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
5. Books and Records.  The Consultant agrees to maintain books, records, and documents that sufficiently 
and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the performance of the Services and maintain such 
accounting procedures and practices as may be deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all 
funds paid pursuant to this Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection, review 
or audit by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by 
law to monitor this Agreement. 
 
6. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary to 
provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental 
entities, including but not limited to being registered to do business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of 
Covington business license.   The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy 
and accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other 
services prepared or performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall perform its work in accordance 
with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of professional care, skill, diligence, and 
competence as are normally exercised by other members and/or firms of the profession in good standing working 
under the same or similar conditions and circumstances and in similar communities as the services provided by the 
Consultant under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance, 
and actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant.  The 
City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any costs or damages incurred by the City, 
or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of this 
Agreement or failure to meet the professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, 
drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and other products of the professional services rendered hereunder shall 
not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy thereof.  Neither the 
City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services shall be construed to operate as a waiver of 
any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   
 
7. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original records, reports, designs, files, documents, 
drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of form or format, and all other materials prepared or 
produced by the Consultant in connection with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the project for 
which they were created is executed or not. At the termination or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such 
records or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the City.  No confidential 
information obtained or created by the Consultant shall be disclosed to any person or party other than the City 
without the City’s prior written consent. 
 
8. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the Consultant that the 
Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that the City shall be neither liable nor obligated to pay the 
Consultant sick leave, vacation pay, or any other benefit of employment.  The Consultant shall pay all income and 
other taxes due.  Industrial or any other insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether 
such may provide a secondary or incidental benefit to the Consultant, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement 
to an employment contract.  The Consultant shall be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, 
employees, sub-consultants, or representatives during the performance of this Agreement.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of employer and employee or principal and agent between the 
parties hereto.  The Consultant shall have the sole judgment of the means, mode, or manner of the actual 
performance of this Agreement.  The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for 
carrying out and accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
9. Indemnification.  The consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, including attorney 
fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. Should a court of competent 
jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages 
arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence 

37 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 3 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant’s liability hereunder, 
including the duty and cost to defend, shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence. It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant’s waiver of 
immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has 
been mutually negotiated by the parties. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement. 
  
10. Insurance.  The Consultant shall at a minimum procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement 
the following insurance against claims which may arise from or in connection with the performance of work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees and in such forms and with such carriers who 
have a rating satisfactory to the City: 
 

10.1. _X_ Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance covering any negligent professional  
acts, errors or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined single limits of liability 
not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit for damages sustained by reason of or in 
the course of operation under this Agreement. 
 

10.2. _X__ Employer Liability. Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts  
sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington.  
 

10.3. _X__ Commercial General Liability. Commercial general liability insurance covering liability  
arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and advertising injury and written on 
ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, 
$2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, including personal injury or death, products liability, and property 
damage.  
 

10.4. _X__ Automobile Liability. Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned,  
hired, and leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident 
for bodily injury, including personal injury or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed 
to provide contractual liability coverage.   
      

10.5. Additional Requirements. 
 

10.5.1. The City shall be named as additional insured on all above required insurance policies,  
with the exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant participates in a 
state-run workers’ comp program.   
 

10.5.2. Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not 
less than A:VII.  
 

10.5.3. All required insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they  
may not be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the City.  If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," the Consultant shall be required 
to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) years from the date of this Agreement is actually 
terminated or upon project completion and acceptance by the City.   
 

10.5.4. The Consultant shall provide original certificates of insurance and a copy of the  
amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, evidencing such above required 
coverage and, at the City's request, furnish the City with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of 
payment of premiums or fees of such policies.   
 

10.6. The Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required above shall not be construed to limit the  
liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity.  
 

10.7. The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies as required above shall be grounds for 
the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or 

38 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 4 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

termination of this Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 
11. Termination.   

 
11.1. This Agreement may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by the City.   

 
11.2. Upon termination, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports, 

or other materials prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five 
(5) business days of the date of termination. Consultant shall be entitled to payment for all Services satisfactorily 
performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of termination. 
 

11.3. This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies it may otherwise have  
for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement.  The remedies provided in this 
paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedy the City may have at law or in equity. 
 
12. Discrimination.  In all Consultant services, programs, or activities, and all Consultant hiring and  
employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, there shall be no discrimination by the Consultant 
or by the Consultant's employees, agents, subcontractors, or representatives against any person because of sex, age 
(except minimum age and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status, or the presence of 
any disability, including sensory, mental, or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide occupational 
qualification in relationship to hiring and employment.  This requirement shall apply, but not be limited to the 
following:  employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and 
selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The Consultant shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 
RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or any other applicable federal, state, or local law or regulation regarding non-
discrimination. Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by the 
City and, in the case of the Consultant's breach, may result in ineligibility for further City agreements.   
 
13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement  
or subcontract any portion of the Services contemplated hereunder without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
14. Conflict of Interest.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict of interest in performing  
any of the Services described herein.  It is recognized that the Consultant may or will be performing services during 
the Term for other parties; provided, however, that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or 
interfere with the Consultant’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform 
services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the Consultant shall immediately disclose such potential 
conflict to the City.  The Consultant agrees to resolve any actual conflicts of interest in favor of the City. 
 
15. Confidentiality.  All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant and designated by the City  
as confidential in the performance of this Agreement shall be considered confidential.  Breach of confidentiality by 
the Consultant shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement. 

  
16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire  
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, 
conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous 
communications, negotiations, representations, or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto 
concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
17. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing signed by all parties  
hereto.   
 
18. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default immediately upon occurrence  
shall not waive such breach or default. Failure of the City to declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of 
the City's right to declare another breach or default. 
 
19. Successors.  Subject to any limiting provisions of this Agreement, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit  
of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 
successors, and assigns. 

39 of 80



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 5 
Updated 12-13-12 
 
 

 
20. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. The invalidity  
or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and the 
Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this 
Agreement.  
 
21. Notices.  All notices, payments, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be  
deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first class or certified mail, with postage 
prepaid to the address included in the signature block below, or to such other person or place as one party shall 
furnish to the other in writing. Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, 
upon the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
22. Governing Law / Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of  
Washington. The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be King County, Washington. 
 
23. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the substantially defaulting party  
agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, 
including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or 
the determination of the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, arbitration, 
administrative, bankruptcy, and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
24. Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of reference and shall be  
given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 
25. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City and the Consultant contained  
hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
26. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this Agreement is the City’s legal  
representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this 
transaction.  The Consultant further acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel 
and has had an opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has consulted 
with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do so. There shall be no 
presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party hereto. 
 
27. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and the Consultant represents  
and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the 
Consultant or the City. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON      CONSERVATION TECHNIX  
 
 
________________________________    ___________________________________ 
By: Regan Bolli      By:________________________________ 
Its: City Manager      Its: ________________________________ 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100     Address: P.O. Box 12736 
Covington, WA  98042      Portland, OR 97212 
        
 
Attest:        Approved as to form: 
      
 
____________________________________   _________________________________  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk      Sara Springer, City Attorney 

40 of 80



 
 

City of Covington PROS Plan Update    March 2, 2015 
Scope of Work     Page A‐1 

 
Project Scope 

 
 
 
 

Task 1: Project Initiation & Management 
Hold a project kick-off meeting with City staff to refine the scope of the project and to consider the 
following: 

 Review and discuss the overall goals, objectives and milestones for the project; Define a public 
participation plan. 

 Identify key stakeholders including agencies, organizations and individuals; Discuss community 
interests and issues. 

 Discuss any concurrent planning efforts underway to assess need for integration and/or coordination 
of efforts. 

Hold periodic project coordination/progress meetings with City staff to review and discuss work products, 
prepare for community outreach and develop plan implementation strategies.  
 

 

Task 2: Existing Conditions & Baseline Analyses 
Task 2.1.  Review of Existing Plans & Studies 

Review and analyze all pertinent, existing print and electronic City-wide planning materials, including the City 
Comprehensive Plan, existing PROS Plan, Park Impact Fee study, budget and past surveys, among others. 
Review and validate the parks, open space and recreation goals of the comprehensive plan and other policy 
statements.  

Task 2.2.  Demographics & Trends 

Compile relevant statistics and data to include Census figures and Washington OFM projections to profile 
population trends and other socioeconomic conditions. Examine recent studies and regional statistics, such as 
the Washington SCORP, NRPA data and sports industry association data, to develop a trend assessment 
uniquely-focused toward the City’s offerings.    

Task 2.3.  Base Mapping & Spatial Analysis 

Utilize GIS to analyze the parks and recreation system against distribution, proximity and accessibility criteria 
and identify potential shared uses or multiple uses of public lands for recreation. Our team has strong skills in 
GIS and CAD, and we offer a unique method of assessing service areas and system deficiencies. We utilize a 
network-based walkshed gap analysis that can illustrate areas of the city with optimal parkland access, as well 
as highlight areas underserved by park and recreation facilities.  

Task 2.4.  Parkland, Amenity & Facility Inventory & Assessment 

Expanding upon existing City documentation, conduct a physical assessment of existing parks, open spaces, 
beaches and facilities to identify potential needs for improvement, enhancement or renovation, along with 
opportunities to establish or improve operational practices. Meet with operations staff to discuss facility 

Exhibit A ATTACHMENT 2

41 of 80



 
 

City of Covington PROS Plan Update    March 2, 2015 
Scope of Work     Page A‐2 

needs, best management practices or challenges regarding the planned and potential growth of system assets 
and facilities.  
 

 

Task 3: Community Engagement 
We propose a thorough and transparent public process to enliven, inform and validate the Plan update.  

Task 3.1. Public Participation Plan 

The City of Covington is seeking a creative approach to facilitate a public conversation. We will facilitate this 
conversation, offering strategies and tactics. We will begin by ensuring the outreach goals defined in the RFP 
will yield the results the City is hoping to achieve. We will utilize the project kick-off meeting to clearly 
identify realistic goals, measurements of success, define roles, finalize an outreach strategy and develop a 
stakeholder database. We will prepare a public participation plan to define the methods and tools connect 
with community members (i.e., public meetings, stakeholder sessions, survey, etc.) and to distribute project 
information (i.e., project fact sheet, frequently asked questions, project website, press releases, etc.).   

Task 3.2. Community Survey  

Working closely with City staff and the project team, ETC Institute will design and implement a community 
survey to identify general community sentiment and preferences, needs, demand and the general use of parks, 
recreation programs/facilities and to inform and guide the direction and development of the system master 
plan. The survey will be up to 6 pages in length (allowing for 24-32 questions, many with multiple 
components) and take 10-12 minutes to administer by phone.  

ETC Institute will prepare a sampling plan that will ensure the completion of at least 300 surveys of resident 
households (at least +/-5.6% at the 95% level of confidence). ETC Institute will design the sample so that a 
mail survey is first sent out by first class mail to a random sampling of residents, including a metered return 
envelope to ETC Institute). The mail survey will also contain a message in the cover letter to non-English 
speaking households (e.g., Spanish) that will provide a 1-800 phone number to call to have the survey 
administered over the phone in that language and the web address for those who want to take the survey by 
the web. ETC Institute will develop a web version of the survey. Two days prior to receiving the mailed 
survey, each resident household receiving a survey will receive an electronic voice message, informing them 
about the survey and encouraging them to complete the survey. An extensive phone follow-up is conducted 
either to encourage completion of the mailed survey or to administer the survey by phone.  

Following the close of the survey, ETC Institute will perform data entry, editing and verification of the survey 
responses for each survey. Data will be collected and analyzed by subarea for subgroup comparisons. We will 
analyze responses and prepare summary findings.  

Task 3.3. Stakeholder & Focus Group Discussions  

We will conduct up to two small focus group discussions and up to 4 individual stakeholder interviews to 
more deeply address areas of partnerships, programming, service delivery or community needs. Information 
from these sessions could be used to aid in the development of action strategies or discuss and consider 
alternative funding scenarios. Potential stakeholders may include the Kent and Tahoma School Districts, 
sport groups, recreation program users, private fitness clubs, civic clubs (i.e., Rotary, Lions, Kiwanis), 
Chamber of Commerce, Covington Economic Development Council, among others.  
 

42 of 80



 
 

City of Covington PROS Plan Update    March 2, 2015 
Scope of Work     Page A‐3 

Task 3.4. Community Workshops & Events 

Coordinate and facilitate two public meetings and attend one community event (i.e., Covington Days), with 
logistics support from City staff, to solicit feedback and guidance from the general public in the development 
of the plan update.  

Community Meeting #1 - Visioning: Host a community meeting to explore the future vision of the 
parks, recreation and trails system, along with program and facility opportunities. Identify with 
residents any non-traditional or non-city recreation providers, local associations and other interested 
parties who might provide critical information to the plan. Residents will be asked to add richness to 
the inventory data and help in confirming field observations about park and facility needs and 
opportunities. Explore ideas about recreation programming interests and facility needs.  

Community Event: Attend a community event, such as Covington Days, to offer residents a progress 
update on the Plan, along with a summary of survey results. Identify with residents important 
upgrades, expansions or enhancement projects that could be reflected in the capital facilities plan.  

Community Meeting #2 - Draft Plan Presentation: Present and review the preliminary draft Plan and 
seek feedback in specific areas, such as capital project priorities, partnerships and implementation 
strategies. Solicit input on recommendations for a connected system of parks and trails corridors and 
linkages with schools, retail areas and neighborhoods.   

For each meeting, we will prepare presentation materials specific to the session’s format and intent, facilitate 
group discussions, record public comments and produce meeting summaries.  

Task 3.5. Public Information & Interactive Communications 

Coordinate with the City to prepare and circulate informational materials to inform the public about the 
project and research findings. Work with staff to outline and prepare project webpage content for the City’s 
website to promote meetings, allow access to project materials and give transparency to the process, as well as 
include meeting notices, meeting minutes, presentation graphics and draft and final reports. Administer and 
utilize the MindMixer platform (mindmixer.com) for an integrated, on-going online community discussion. 
The tool allows for seamless integration with more traditional public meeting styles and surveys. It enables 
residents to submit ideas, feedback and answer questions about key issues or topics, and it can be linked to 
the City’s social media. Prepare content for distribution via the City’s social media platforms. It is assumed 
that the City will manage its social media platforms and content posting.  

Task 3.6. Internal Department Staff Meeting 

Meet with Parks & Recreation Department leadership and key staff as a unique stakeholder to the process 
during the preparation of the Plan. Discussions will focus toward visioning, challenges, opportunities and 
unmet demands. Staff discussions will also confirm community concerns and issues and will be a sounding 
board for Plan recommendations.  

 

 

Task 4: Recommendations & Analyses 
Task 4.1. Park Level of Service Assessment & Benchmarking 

Coordinate with staff on the approaches to service standard assessments, which may include NRPA’s 
PRORAGIS database, comparable cities and local history. Utilize survey and national data to compare the 
City against other comparable jurisdictions. Review current park classifications in terms of hierarchy, 

43 of 80



 
 

City of Covington PROS Plan Update    March 2, 2015 
Scope of Work     Page A‐4 

appropriateness and function, and discuss the potential for locally-relevant revisions to classifications to fit 
with local recreation needs, staff direction and an estimate of financial implications.  

Task 4.2. Recreation Program Assessment & User Fee Analysis 

Assess and analyze the City’s current recreation offerings, including contracted programs. Conduct a 
recreation user fee analysis for programs and facilities and explore cost recovery options. Utilize current 
trends and national and regional sports/exercise survey data to provide insight into programs and services 
and to estimate future demand. Prepare recommendations that describe City’s future role in delivering 
recreation services in relation to the roles of other providers and recommendations for expanding recreation 
programs and services. Ballard*King will lead this task, and it includes two visits from Ballard*King. 

Task 4.3. Needs Assessment Summary & Action Plan 

Summarize findings and statistics and specifically address potential facility, park, trail, program and 
maintenance improvements to meet the service demands requested by the community and stakeholders.  

 Synthesize information from public outreach, program and facility evaluations, inventory analysis and 
demographics. 

 Consider park system classifications, definitions and service standards based on resident input, staff 
direction and an estimate of financial implications.  

 Consider recreation program needs based on resident input, staff direction and an estimate of 
financial implications. 

 Prepare a gap analysis to identify demand, assess the capacity of the existing facilities, and assess if 
there are gaps in service or capacity. 

 Prepare a gap analysis to identify demand of recreation programs and assess if there are gaps in 
service or capacity. 

 Identify potential areas to serve as future parks and define the program for acquisitions and 
development. 

 Identify priorities for recreation program creation, expansion or enhancement.  
 

 

Task 5: Preliminary Plan Development 
Task 5.1. Preliminary Draft Parks, Recreation & Open Space Plan 

The draft Plan will outline a framework for the improvement of recreational amenities, expansion of 
recreation program offerings and identification of potential acquisitions responsive to the specific needs of 
the community. This framework will help clarify funding, program objectives, development or resource goals. 
The draft Plan will include chapters detailing the public process, inventory, community needs, goals and 
implementation actions and strategies - consistent with RCO guidelines. The Plan will incorporate the 
following:  

 Clear goals and discrete policies for park, beach, trail, open space and recreation facility delivery 

 Potential public funding sources, grants and strategic partnerships with private entities 

 Opportunities for cooperative arrangements with the school district, civic groups, private 
development community, businesses and initiatives with nearby municipalities 

44 of 80



 
 

City of Covington PROS Plan Update    March 2, 2015 
Scope of Work     Page A‐5 

Following the staff and stakeholder review of the preliminary draft plan, we will revise the document and 
produce a public draft Plan for distribution to and review by the Parks & Recreation Commission, Planning 
Commission, City Council and general public. We will provide an electronic copy and one print-ready copy to 
the City for use in making sufficient print copies for distribution to staff and Commission members.  

Task 5.2. Capital Improvements Plan 

Update the existing Capital Improvements Plan that identifies in priority order and sequences the actions 
necessary to implement Plan recommendations. Generate initial cost projection for all proposed facility, park 
and recreation components, renovation and redevelopment, potential land acquisition and potential new 
development. Prepare a strategy and priorities for phased implementation of proposed recommendations. 
Capital improvements plan components will be organized based on funding availability, ease of 
implementation and construction cost. Examine the cost of the capital improvements plan with existing or 
potential funding and grant options.   
 

 

Task 6: Plan Review & Approval 
Task 6.1. Parks & Recreation Commission Review 

Conduct two study sessions with the Commission for their review and comment. The sessions will focus on 
the draft Plan and highlight the key considerations about services, policies, program strategies and capital 
priorities. Comments and direction will be incorporated into the Plan and provided to staff for circulation to 
City Council.   

Task 6.2. Planning Commission Review 
Conduct a study session with the Commission for their review and incorporate comments into the Plan.  
Task 6.3. City Council Review 

Attend two work sessions with City Council to present the draft Plan with staff and review the key findings, 
financing measures, policy recommendations and implementation strategies and to receive Council’s 
comments prior to formal approval.       

Task 6.4. Plan Revisions & Final Documentation 

Incorporate final comments to finalize the Plan. Coordinate with staff regarding the final approval of the Plan 
by City Council. Produce the PROS Plan and executive summary in booklet format, delivered in electronic 
format and one print-ready copy. It is assumed that the City will produce print copies of the final documents 
for circulation. A CD of all deliverables will be provided in digital formats at project completion.  

 

 

 

 
 
 

45 of 80



 
 

City of Covington PROS Plan Update    March 2, 2015 
Scope of Work     Page B‐1 

 
 

Project Fees 
 
To complete the scope of work identified in the Scope of Work section of this submittal, we 
propose a total not-to-exceed cost (including expenses) of $71,967. Staff rates and a fee summary are 
listed below.  

 

Staff Rates 

 
 
 
Fee Summary 

 
 
 

Exhibit B 

Firm Staff Billing Rate

Conservation Technix Principal 130$                 

Senior Associate I 115$                 

Senior Associate II 105$                 

Associate 95$                   

MacLeod Reckord Principal 1 155$                 

Principal 2 140$                 

Landscape Designer 1 98$                   

Landscape Designer 2 92$                   

Ballard*King Principal 135$                 

Senior Associate 85$                   

ETC Institute Sr Vice President 200$                 

TASK Fee Subtotal
Percent of 
Total Fee

Conservation 
Technix

MacLeod 
Reckord

Ballard*King ETC Institute

 Task 1: Project Initiation & Management 1,820$            3% 1,820$           -$                -$                -$                

 Task 2: Existing Conditions & Baseline Analyses 11,440$          16% 6,810$           4,630$         -$                -$                

 Task 3: Public Engagement 27,235$          38% 11,445$         4,790$         -$                11,000$       

 Task 4: Recommendations & Analyses 14,840$          21% 3,600$           1,240$         10,000$       -$                

 Task 5: PROS Plan Development 6,865$            10% 5,780$           1,085$         -$                -$                

 Task 6: Plan Review & Approval 4,390$            6% 4,390$           -$                -$                -$                

 Direct Costs 5,050$            7% 1,930$           120$            3,000$         -$                

 Overhead 327$               0% 327$              

GRAND TOTAL 71,967$          

ATTACHMENT 3

46 of 80



Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 24, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF CONSULTANT CONTRACT AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 

WITH HELIX DESIGN GROUP FOR DESIGN DRAWINGS OF TOWN 
CENTER, CITY HALL & PUBLIC PLAZA AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY 
MANAGER TO SIGN SAID CONTRACT.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director  
                                           
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Consultant Contract for Services with Exhibit A-Scope of Services, Project Description 
& Timeline  

 
PREPARED BY:        Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In February 2014, city council authorized staff to partner with Panattoni Development Company 
LLC and their partnership team, consisting of several sub-consultants, including Helix Design 
Group, to explore partnership and development opportunities in the Town Center and evaluate 
the feasibility of a public-private Town Center partnership. The partnership includes options for 
purchasing Covington Elementary School, located on SE Wax road, from the Kent School 
District and setting aside a portion of the site to be a focal point for Covington’s Town Center to 
include a new city hall, public plaza and public green spaces.  The remainder of the site would be 
developed with mixed use as outlined in the city’s 2009 Downtown Plan.   
 
In January 2013, the City of Covington entered into an agreement with the Kent School District 
for a Right of First Offer on the property which is set to expire in December 2016. The Kent 
School District has indicated it is considering selling the property in the next several years if they 
are successful with a bond issue to support construction of the new elementary school.  The 
school district wants to sell the existing 16.6 acre site, on SE Wax Road, and build a new larger 
elementary school at the southwest corner of SE 256th St. and 156h Ave SE in Covington.  In 
anticipation for purchase of the current Covington Elementary property, the city will need to 
develop concept design plans and elevations for public outreach and presentation to the city 
council.  It is critical that some pre-planning for the concept design and town center imagery take 
place to develop ideas for public outreach and discussion.     
 
Panattoni and Helix Design Group have developed a proposal for consideration by the city 
council to develop a concept design proposal including plans, elevations, massing models and 
digital pictures. This work is the logical first step for review by the council if the city desires to 
move forward with a public private partnership to develop the Covington Town Center.   
 
The City proposes to fund the $32,000 cost for further study and conceptual design from the 
current 2015 council contingency funds.  The design study will take approximately 3-4 months 

47 of 80



and should be complete by July, 2015. At that time, the concept design will be presented to the 
city council with a process for public outreach.               
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Return the contract and scope of services to the city staff for revisions as directed by the 
council.  

2. Do not fund any design study and concept imagery of the Covington Town Center at this 
time. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Fiscal impact involves $32,000 set aside in the city council contingency fund as part of the 2015 
city budget.     
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution      X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to approve the consultant contract and associated scope of services 
with Helix Design Group to complete a concept design study and drawings of 
the proposed Covington Town Center and authorize the city manager to sign 
such contract is substantially the same form as attached.    
 

REVIEWED BY:  Finance Director; City Manager; City Attorney. 

48 of 80



 
Page 1 of 5 

City of Covington—Professional Services Agreement v.1 

Contract No. __________ 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the City of Covington, Washington, a Washington 
municipal corporation (the “City"), and Helix Design Group (the “Consultant”), a Washington S Corporation. 
The City and the Consultant are collectively referred to in this Agreement as the “Parties”, and each 
individually as a “Party”.  

 WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have certain services performed for its citizens but does 
not have the manpower or expertise to perform such services; and  
 WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Consultant perform such services pursuant to certain terms and 
conditions; now, therefore, 
 IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions hereinafter contained, the Parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Services.  The Consultant shall perform those services described on Exhibit A, Scope of Services, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Services”), performed to the City’s 
satisfaction, within the time period prescribed by the City, and pursuant to the direction of the City. In 
performing the Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations, 
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards, and policies, as now existing or 
hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance. The Consultant shall not modify in 
any way the scope or schedule of the Services without the prior written approval of the City. Time is of the 
essence in every aspect of performance of the Services. 
 
2. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from March 24, 2015, through and 
until July 31, 2015, unless sooner terminated under the provisions hereinafter specified. 
 
3. Compensation and Method of Payment.  The total amount to be paid under this Agreement shall not 
exceed thirty-two thousand dollars ($32,000). The City shall pay the Consultant for Services rendered on a 
time and expenses basis based upon the Consultant’s rates as indicated on Exhibit B, Rates for Services (the 
“Rates”), attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, and upon receipt of invoice from the 
Consultant. The Consultant shall not amend the Rates in any way without prior written approval from the City. 
Payment will only be made by the City after the Services have been satisfactorily performed, an invoice is 
submitted in a form acceptable to the City, and the same is approved by the appropriate City representative. 
Payment by the City shall be made no later than ten (10) days after said approval. Prior to or along with the 
first invoice submitted, the Consultant shall return to the City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification 
Number and Certification,” also known as IRS form W-9. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for the 
payment of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the performance and payment of this 
Agreement. 
 
4. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the Consultant that the 
Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to 
create the relation of employer and employee or principal and agent between the Parties hereto. The 
Consultant shall be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, sub-consultants, or 
representatives during the performance of this Agreement.  The Consultant shall have the sole judgment of 
the means, mode, or manner of the actual performance of this Agreement. The Consultant, as an independent 
contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and accomplishing this Agreement. 

 
5. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary to 
provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental 
entities, as applicable. The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, timely completion, and 
coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and/or any other work product prepared or 
performed pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall perform its work in accordance with the 
requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of professional care, skill, diligence, and 
competence as are normally exercised by other members and/or firms of the profession in good standing 

ATTACHMENT 1

49 of 80



 
 Page 2 of 5 

working under the same or similar conditions and circumstances and in similar communities as the Services 
provided by the Consultant under this Agreement. The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional 
standards, performance, and actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on 
behalf of the Consultant. The City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any 
costs or damages incurred by the City, or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the Consultant’s 
failure to comply with the requirements of this Agreement or failure to meet the professional standard of care 
and skill, or both. Neither the City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any Services shall be 
construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement.   
 
6. Ownership and Use of Documents. Any and all original records, reports, designs, files, documents, 
drawings, specifications, data, or information, regardless of form or format or if finished or unfinished, and all 
other materials prepared or produced by the Consultant in connection with the Services under this Agreement 
(the “Materials”) shall be the property of the City whether the project or purpose for which they were created 
is executed or not. At the termination or expiration of this Agreement, any and all such Materials or 
information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the City in their original format, 
or any other available format as requested by the City, within five (5) business days. No confidential 
information obtained or created by the Consultant shall be disclosed to any person or party other than the City 
without the City’s prior written consent. 

 
7. Record Keeping and Reporting. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, 
property, financial, and programmatic records, which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect 
costs associated with performance of the Services required under this Agreement and other such records as 
may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure the performance of this Agreement for a period of six (6) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement. The records and documents with respect to all matters 
covered by this Agreement shall be subject at all times to inspection, review, or audit by law during the 
performance of this Agreement. 
 
8. Indemnification.  The Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, 
and employees, from and against any and all claims for damages, losses, or liability, including attorney's fees, 
arising out of or resulting from the negligent act, omission, or failure of the Consultant, its officers, agents, and 
employees, in performing the Services under this Agreement. WITH RESPECT TO THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS 
AGREEMENT AND AS TO CLAIMS AGAINST THE CITY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, THE 
CONSULTANT EXPRESSLY WAIVES ITS IMMUNITY UNDER TITLE 51 OF THE REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON, 
THE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ACT, FOR INJURIES TO ITS EMPLOYEES, AND AGREES THAT THE OBLIGATION TO 
INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND HOLD HARMLESS PROVIDED FOR IN THIS PARAGRAPH EXTENDS TO ANY CLAIM 
BROUGHT BY OR ON BEHALF OF ANY EMPLOYEE OF THE CONSULTANT. THIS WAIVER IS MUTUALLY 
NEGOTIATED BY THE PARTIES.  This paragraph shall not apply to any damage resulting from the sole negligence 
of the City, its agents, and employees. To the extent any of the damages referenced by this paragraph were 
caused by or resulted from the concurrent negligence of the City, its agents, or employees, the Consultant’s 
obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City is valid and enforceable only to the extent of the 
negligence of the Consultant, its officers, agents, and employees. The provisions of this section shall survive 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

9. Insurance.  The Consultant shall at a minimum procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement  
the following insurance against claims which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
Services hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees and in such forms and with 
such carriers who have a rating satisfactory to the City [required insurance coverage under this Agreement is 
indicated with a checkmark – if not required, indicate with “NA”]: 
 

9.1.       _X___ Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance covering any negligent  
professional acts, errors, or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined single 
limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit for damages 
sustained by reason of or in the course of operation under this Agreement. 
 

9.2. _NA___ Employer Liability. Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts 

50 of 80



 
Page 3 of 5 

City of Covington—Professional Services Agreement v.1 

sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington.  
 

9.3.   _NA___ Commercial General Liability. Commercial general liability insurance covering  
liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and advertising injury and 
written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, including personal injury or death, products 
liability, and property damage.  
 

9.4. _X___ Automobile Liability. Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, 
and leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing 
equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident for 
bodily injury, including personal injury or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be 
endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage.       
  

9.5. Additional Insurance Terms and Requirements. 
 

9.5.1. The City shall be named as additional insured on all above required insurance policies, with 
the exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant participates in a 
state-run workers’ comp program.   
 

9.5.2. Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less 
than A:VII.  
 

9.5.3. All required insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they may 
not be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to the City. If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," the Consultant shall 
be required to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) years from the date of this Agreement 
is actually terminated or upon project completion and acceptance by the City.   
 

9.5.4.        The Consultant shall provide original certificates of insurance and a copy of the  
amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, evidencing such above required 
coverage and, at the City's request, furnish the City with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of 
payment of premiums or fees of such policies.   
 

9.5.5. The Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required above shall not be construed to limit 
the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s 
recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity. The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance 
policies as required above shall be grounds for the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. The 
provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to any 
event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 
10. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party without cause at any time upon written 
notice to the other. Upon termination, all finished or unfinished Materials prepared by the Consultant 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City pursuant to Section 6 herein. The Consultant shall be 
entitled to payment for all Services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of 
termination.  
 
11. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee, applicant for 
employment, or any person seeking the services of the Consultant to be provided under this Agreement on the 
basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, marital status or presence of any sensory, mental 

51 of 80



 
 Page 4 of 5 

or physical handicap. 
 
12. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the Services 
contemplated by this Agreement without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
13. Entire Agreement /Amendments.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, constitutes 
the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. There are no 
promises, terms, conditions, or obligations other than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall 
supersede all previous communications, negotiations, representations, or agreements, either verbal or 
written, between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may not 
be modified or amended except by writing signed by all Parties hereto.   
 
14. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default immediately upon occurrence 
shall not waive such breach or default. Failure of the City to declare one breach or default does not act as a 
waiver of the City's right to declare another breach or default. 
 
15. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. The invalidity 
or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof 
and the Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a 
part of this Agreement.  
 
16. Notices.  All notices, payments, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed duly given if emailed, personally delivered, or mailed by first class or certified mail, with postage 
prepaid, to the relevant address in the signature block below, or to such other person or place as a party shall 
furnish to the other in writing. Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon receipt of email or personal 
delivery or, if mailed, upon the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
17. Governing Law / Venue / Attorneys’ Fees.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Washington. The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be King 
County, Washington. In the event of any default under this Agreement, the substantially defaulting party 
agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable expenses which the latter incurs by reason 
thereof, including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of 
such default or the determination of the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal 
proceedings, or otherwise. The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, 
arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy, and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
18. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this Agreement is the City’s legal 
representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any legal counseling or legal advice with regard to 
this transaction. The Consultant further acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent 
legal counsel and has had an opportunity to do so. By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges 
that it has consulted with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do so. 
There shall be no presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party hereto. 
 
19. Authority / Counterparts.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and the 
Consultant represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and deliver this 
Agreement on behalf of the Consultant or the City. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts and as executed shall constitute one Agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all 
parties are not signatory to the same counterpart. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52 of 80



 
Page 5 of 5 

City of Covington—Professional Services Agreement v.1 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date indicated below. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON  CONSULTANT 
 
 
   _                                             _____________ 
 
By: Regan Bolli  By:            Bruce McKean 
Title:  City Manager  Title:         Principal, Helix Design Group, Inc. 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100  Address:  6021 12th Street East, Suite 201 
Covington, WA 98042                    Tacoma, Washington 98335 
 
Email: rbolli@covingtonwa.gov                                          Email: Brucem@HelixDesignGroup.net 
 
 
 
DATE: __________________________________           DATE: ________________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:   
 
  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:                                                                                                    
Office of the City Attorney 
   
By: ____________________________________   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

53 of 80

mailto:rbolli@covingtonwa.gov�


54 of 80



55 of 80



56 of 80



57 of 80



58 of 80



59 of 80



Agenda Item 4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 24, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS USE OF CITY SEAL 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Covington City Ordinance No. 08-14 
 
PREPARED BY:  Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Background: 
The Covington Economic Development Council (CEDC) intently worked on an effort to better 
define the City of Covington’s brand. CEDC utilized several different research tools including 
focus group-type workshops, one-on-one interviews, citizen surveys, and the city’s 
comprehensive plan and economic development element to inform their project work. Groups 
that participated in the workshops included CEDC, the Covington City Council, the Covington 
Chamber of Commerce, and the City of Covington’s management team. One-on-one interviews 
were conducted with a variety of stakeholders including citizens, city staff, business members, 
commissioners, and council members. 
 
Analyzing the data resulting from the research allowed CEDC to better understand the city’s 
brand and move toward developing a new tagline and graphic identity to identify and market the 
city. A consultant assisted with studying the data and made a recommendation for a new tagline 
that accurately captures the public’s feeling of the city: “Growing toward greatness.” With the 
tagline developed, the project moved into the design phase. CEDC chose the final logo after 
considering twelve possible logo options.  
 
CEDC presented the final city logo and tagline to the city council and the Covington Chamber of 
Commerce at a joint meeting of all three organizations on May 13, 2014. All three organizations 
fully supported CEDC’s branding efforts and agreed that the new logo and tag line developed by 
CEDC should become the primary “mark” of the city, replacing the current use of the city seal as 
the logo. The city seal would remain as the formal symbol of civic authority and be used for 
official purposes, including documents requiring an official seal, and for mayoral/council use. 
 
On May 27, 2014 city council approved the ordinance to adopt the new city logo and tagline. 
 
Current Issue: 
The city currently has no official policy regarding the use of the new city logo or the city seal. As 
referenced in the ordinance, brand guidelines were created to define and govern the use of the 
new city logo which would take the place of the city seal. Use of the city seal would remain, 
however, and was defined to be “used for official purposes, including documents requiring an 
official seal, flags, council chambers, and mayoral/council use.” 
 

60 of 80



Staff would like clarification on the intent for the seal to be used “used for official purposes, 
including documents requiring an official seal, flags, council chambers, and mayoral/council 
use.” 
 
A policy example that would make sense for Covington based on the existing brand guidelines 
and consensus when the logo was adopted might look like this: 
 

A. The city seal and the city logo are the property of the city of Covington. Both are a mark for the 
city but are used for different purposes. The seal is used for purposes of certifying official records 
and instruments of the city of Covington. The logo is a graphic symbol used to identify city 
programs, initiatives, partnerships, events and sponsorships.  
 
B. The city clerk shall be the official custodian of the official seal for the city. 
 
C. The city manager or designee is the official custodian of the official logo of the city. 
 
D. The city clerk or designee is authorized to use the city seal on any ordinance, resolution, 
proclamation, commendation, certificate or other instrument approved by the city council or 
executed by the mayor or other city officers or officials; and to authenticate official documents in 
the conduct of official city business. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
n/a  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
n/a 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution            Motion        X    Other 
 

Provide direction to staff 
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

61 of 80



ATTACHMENT 1

62 of 80



63 of 80



64 of 80



Agenda Item 5   
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 24, 2015  
 
SUBJECT: PRESENT 2014 YEAR END FINANCIALS  
 
PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 1. 2014 Fourth Quarter and Annual Report 
 2.  Quarterly Performance Report Charts for All Funds 
 3. Major Revenue Comparison 
  
EXPLANATION: 
Attached are reports and charts that provide both summary and detailed information on revenues 
and expenditures for each of the city’s operational funds.   
 
It is the policy of the City of Covington and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.34.240) to 
provide financial reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
No impact. This is an update on 2014 operational activity through fourth quarter as compared to 
budget. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution  _____Motion   __X___Other 
 

ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

65 of 80



ATTACHMENT 1

66 of 80



67 of 80



68 of 80



69 of 80



70 of 80



71 of 80



72 of 80



ATTACHMENT 2

73 of 80



74 of 80



75 of 80



76 of 80



77 of 80



ATTACHMENT 3

78 of 80



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  March 24, 2015 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, April 14, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79 of 80



For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, April 14, 2015                                                                                                       City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  March 24, 2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS - None 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 

Draft 
as of 3/17/2015 

 

80 of 80

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	03-24-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, March 24, 2015                                                                                                     City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 03-24-2015 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 03.10.2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 03-24-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachment 1
	Item 1 Blue Sheet CCP Ph2 Contract for Park Design, MacLeod Reckord Blue Sheet  2015-03-24
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 M-R PSA Contract 2015-03-24
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	AGREEMENT
	ARCHITECTURE/ENGINEERING SERVICES
	CITY OF COVINGTON      CONSULTANT
	By: Regan Bolli      By:________________________________

	Item 1 Attachment 2 2014-12-03 scope and fee for mitigation
	2014-12-03 MR fee
	ESA scope and fee
	Covington_Phase II 60%_ESA SOW_December 2014 MR edits
	ESA_Covington_Budget_60% Phase 2_November 2014.pdf

	2014-12-03 scope of work for mitigation.pdf

	Item 2 Blue Sheet PROS Plan Update Blue Sheet 2015-03-24
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment 1 PSA Contract 2013-03-24
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	AGREEMENT
	ARCHITECTURE/ENGINEERING SERVICES
	CITY OF COVINGTON      CONSERVATION TECHNIX
	By: Regan Bolli      By:________________________________

	Item 2 Attachment 2 and 3 Scope of Work and Fee Schedule 03-05-2015
	Item 3 Blue Sheet Final Blue Sheet_Contract with Helix Design Group for Town Center Drawings_Clean Copy
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachment 1 Helix Agreement_Revised with Insurance_031215
	Item 3 Attachment 1 Continued Exhibit A Scope of Services for Design Drawings of Town Center
	Item 4 Blue Sheet 3-24-15 Clarify Use of City Seal
	Agenda Item 4

	Item 4 Attachment 1 Ord. 08-14
	Item 5 Blue Sheet 03-24-15 Year End Financials
	Agenda Item 5

	Item 5 Attachments
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	04-14-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, April 14, 2015                                                                                                       City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




